

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU

650 SOUTH KING STREET, 3RD FLOOR
HONOLULU, HAWAII 96813
Phone: (808) 768-8305 • Fax: (808) 768-4730 • Internet: www.honolulu.gov

WAYNE Y. YOSHIOKA
DIRECTOR

SHARON ANN THOM
DEPUTY DIRECTOR



Formatted: Not Hidden

MUF HANNEMANN
MAYOR

May 21, 2010

RT2/09-299218

Mr. Dennis Callan
Stop Rail Now
1011 Prospect Street, Suite 702
Honolulu, Hawaii 96822

Dear Mr. Callan:

Subject: Honolulu High-Capacity Transit Corridor Project
Comments Received on the Draft Environmental Impact Statement

The U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and the City and County of Honolulu Department of Transportation Services (DTS) issued a Draft Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) for the Honolulu High-Capacity Transit Corridor Project. This letter is in response to substantive comments received on the Draft EIS during the comment period, which concluded on February 6, 2009. The Final EIS identifies the Airport Alternative as the Project and is the focus of this document. The selection of the Airport Alternative as the Preferred Alternative was made by the City to comply with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) regulations that state that the Final EIS shall identify the Preferred Alternative (23 CFR § 771.125 (a)(1)). This selection was based on consideration of the benefits of each alternative studied in the Draft EIS, public and agency comments on the Draft EIS, and City Council action under Resolution 08-261 identifying the Airport Alternative as the Project to be the focus of the Final EIS. The selection is described in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS. The Final EIS also includes additional information and analyses, as well as minor revisions to the Project that were made to address comments received from agencies and the public on the Draft EIS. The following paragraphs address comments regarding the above-referenced submittal:

General Comments

The capital plan for the Project is presented in Section 6.3 of the Final EIS. The capital plan took the economic downturn into account and reduced the anticipated General Excise and Use Tax (GET) surcharge collections to reflect that downturn (from _____ to _____). Section 6.6 of the Final EIS also describes risks and uncertainties associated with these funding assumptions, which include changing economic conditions and the possibility of varying levels of

revenue collection and project costs. The City will continue to refine revenue forecasts and cost estimates as the Project proceeds through FTA's New Starts process. The capital plan is a dynamic document that will be updated regularly as conditions warrant.

Capital costs of the Project, including finance charges, are expected to be fully paid for by a combination of FTA Section 5309 New Starts and FTA Section 5307 Funds from the Federal government and revenues from the County General Excise Tax Surcharge levied from 2007 through 2022 on Oahu. These sources of revenue are available only for public transportation purposes.

Comment [MB1]: Will any other funds be required (i.e., State or local)? Please identify all possible sources.

Regarding the Hawaii Department of Transportation's (HDOT) projects, they are all contained in the latest Oahu Metropolitan Planning Organization (OahuMPO) Regional Transportation Plan, and are the basis of the No Build Alternative used to evaluate the fixed guideway project as described in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS. The No Build Alternative is used as a baseline against which to compare the build alternative (i.e., fixed guideway), as well as being a stand-alone alternative. It is against this backdrop that the results are presented in the EIS. Nonetheless, as discussed in Chapter 3 of the Final EIS, the No Build Alternative does not meet the Purpose and Need of the Project.

Comment [MB2]: Provide year of the plan.

Comment [MB3]: Does this plan provide a larger, more effective solution than rail? This is one of Callan's questions; please address.

A travel forecasting model was used to forecast roadway conditions in 2030, both with and without the Project. As described in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, modeling took into account committed transportation projects anticipated to be operational by 2030, which includes the projects identified in the Governor's transportation plan.

Comment [MB4]: Is this the same as the OahuMPO Regional Trans Plan? It needs to be distinguished whether they are the same or different. Provide year.

As shown in Tables 3-9 and 3-10 of the Final EIS, roadway conditions without the fixed guideway system would get worse, despite nearly \$3 billion in planned roadway improvements in 2030. However, these tables also show that traffic volumes on the highway system will go down/decrease with the fixed guideway system. As shown in Table 3-14 in the Final EIS, congestion will be substantially worse in 2030 without the Project.

Comment [MB5]: Provide numbers.

Comment [MB6]: Provide a percentage. "Substantially" is too subjective, unless you can provide a significant percentage increase in congestion or possibly LOS.

The State of Hawaii's Highway Modernization Plan, dated January 22, 2009, is an accelerated construction schedule for many of the projects listed in Table 2-3 of the Final EIS. These projects were included in the analysis of all alternatives in the Draft EIS, including the No Build Alternative.

Comment [MB7]: Third different plan cited. Is this related to the Governor's Highway Plan? Please be clear.

Comment [MB8]: Is or includes?

The process of analyzing and screening alternatives included the analysis of a Managed Lane Alternative, which is substantially similar to the referenced high-occupancy toll (HOT) alternative. The main difference in between the Managed Lane Alternative compared to the HOT alternative proposed in the comment letter is the configuration of ramps. The HOT facility proposed in the comment letter includes has more access ramps than the Managed Lane Alternative studied during the Alternatives Analysis phase, which adds to the cost of the Project.

Comment [MB9]: It may be beneficial to explain the New Starts process and criteria.

Comment [MB10]: Does this include BRT? Need to state.

Comment [MB11]: Provide numbers for both HOT and Managed Lanes alts.

As documented in the Alternatives Analysis Report (DTS 2006b) and explained more fully in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, two options were considered for the Managed Lane Alternative—a Two-direction Option and a Two-lane Reversible Option. This alternative would have provided a two-lane elevated toll facility between Waipahu and Downtown Honolulu, with variable pricing strategies to maintain free-flow speeds for transit and high-occupancy vehicles (HOVs). The

Comment [MB12]: Provide a percentage or rough cost estimate.

Two-direction Option would have served express buses operating in both directions during the entire day. To maintain free-flow speeds in the Two-direction Option, it would have been necessary to charge tolls to manage the number of HOVs using the facility. For the Two-lane Reversible Option, three-person HOVs would be allowed to use the facility for free, while single-occupant and two-person HOVs would have to pay a toll. The Two-lane Reversible Option was found to be the optimal of the two alternatives studied.

The findings are summarized in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS as follows: The Managed Lane Alternative was evaluated for its ability to meet project goals and objectives related to mobility and accessibility, supporting planned growth and economic development, constructability and cost, community and environmental quality, and planning consistency. While this alternative would have reduced congestion on parallel highways, system-wide traffic congestion would have been similar to the No Build Alternative as a result of increased traffic on arterials trying to access the facility. Total islandwide vehicle hours of delay would have increased with the Managed Lane Alternative compared to the No Build Alternative, indicating an increase in system-wide congestion (Table 2-2 of the Final EIS).

The Managed Lane Alternative would not have supported planned concentrated future population and employment growth because it would not provide concentrations of transit service that would serve as a nucleus for transit-oriented development (TOD). The Managed Lane Alternative would have provided little transit benefit at a high cost. The cost-per-hour of transit-user benefits for the Managed Lane Alternative would have been two to three times higher than that for the Fixed Guideway Alternative. Similar to the Transportation System Management (TSM) Alternative, the Managed Lane Alternative would not have substantially improved service or access to transit for transit-dependent communities. No funding sources were identified for the Managed Lane Alternative. Toll revenues from the Managed Lane Alternative would pay for ongoing operations and maintenance while remaining revenues would be used to repay debt incurred to construct the system.

The Managed Lane Alternative would have generated the greatest amount of air pollution, required the greatest amount of energy for transportation use, and would have resulted in the largest number of transportation noise impacts of all the alternatives evaluated. Because the Managed Lane Alternative would have served a shorter portion of the study corridor (approximately 16 miles compared to the 20 miles served by the fixed guideway), it would have resulted in fewer displacements and would have impacted fewer archaeological, cultural, and historic resources than the Fixed Guideway Alternative. The Managed Lane Alternative would not have affected any farmlands. Visually, the elevated structure would have extended a shorter distance, but it would have been more visually intrusive because its elevated structure, with a typical width of between 36 and 46 feet, would have been much wider than the Fixed Guideway Alternative.

After the Alternatives Analysis phase was completed, [scoping was held to provide the public and agencies the opportunity to comment on](#) , per 40 C.F.R. Part 1501.7. Several scoping comments were received requesting reconsideration of the Managed Lane Alternative that was considered and rejected during the Alternatives Analysis phase. Because no new information was provided that would have changed the findings of the Alternatives

Comment [MB13]: Cite New Starts.

Comment [MB14]: Provide VHD figure in parentheses.

Comment [MB15]: Provide VHD figure in parentheses.

Comment [MB16]: Based on other responses reviewed, I thought TOD was an indirect effect of the project, whereas this language makes it sound like it a larger consideration. Please resolve any discrepancies.

Comment [MB17]: Provide data.

Comment [MB18]: Be clearer... Callan will challenge this as FTA/City not trying hard enough or looking at the issues thoroughly.

Comment [MB19]: Include the table or the numbers.

Analysis regarding the Managed Lane Alternative, it was not included in the Draft EIS for further consideration.

The Final EIS fully and adequately addresses the environmental aspects of the Project. A supplement environmental document will not be completed because Additionally, no new major study will be completed because

Comment [MB20]: Callan's alternative is a BRT alternative, specifically. Did the Project's managed lane alternative include BRT? Need to state b/c the connection isn't clear.

The Draft EIS does not reference a 30-percent decrease in congestion. As shown in Table 3-14 of the Draft EIS, there is approximately a 20-percent reduction in vehicle hours of delay (VHD) when comparing Build Alternatives to the No Build Alternative. This comparison is stated clearly in the column heading of the table. The travel demand forecasting model has been refined since the Draft EIS to include non-home-based direct demand trips during off-peak hours. The air passenger model was also updated to reflect current conditions. Table 3-14 in the Final EIS shows an 18-percent reduction in VHD with the Project versus the No Build Alternative. With respect to traffic reductions, the Draft EIS reflects the results of the analysis conducted with the Project compared to the No Build Alternative. The figures have been updated for the Final EIS based on selection of the Airport Alternative and refinements to the travel demand forecasting model to account for (e.g., non-home-based direct-demand trips during off-peak periods, air passenger model). In addition, the air passenger model was updated to reflect current conditions. The updated results continue to show that traffic will decrease with the addition of the Project compared to 2030 No Build conditions. The Final EIS includes the latest information. As discussed above, the information presented in the Final EIS reflects the congestion reduction anticipated with construction of the Project.

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

Comment [MB21]: He's confused about what this term means based on his comments. Please define/explain in reader-friendly terms.

Comment [MB22]: Define/Explain.

Comment [MB23]: Define/Explain

Section 1

1-2. These comments provide information and are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project.

3. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. As stated in the Final EIS, "With increasing traffic congestion over the last 20 years, scheduled trip times for bus routes have been lengthened to reflect the additional time each bus trip takes." The implementation of the fixed guideway system will allow for the redistribution of bus service hours to add service to the growing areas of Central, West, and East Oahu.

Comment [MB24]: Provide page number.

4. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Figure 3-7 in the Final EIS shows that transit travel times will be substantially shorter with the fixed guideway system than with the No Build Alternative.

5. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. National trends show increasing transit ridership, and last year (2008) recorded the highest demand for public transportation in 52 years (APTA 2008 Ridership Report). National transit ridership has grown 18 percent over the past 10 years (2007 National Transit Summaries and Trends, National Transit Database). Honolulu transit ridership has grown over the past several years, recovering from three fare increases (July 1, 2001, July 1, 2003, October 1, 2003) and a month-long strike (FY 2004).

Comment [MB25]: Specify... bus? Local gov't?

6. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the project. As stated previously, Figure 3-7 in the Final EIS shows that transit travel times will be substantially shorter with the fixed guideway system than with the No Build Alternative. Table 3-14 of the Final EIS shows that VHD decreases 18 percent with the Project versus the No Build Alternative.

7. As noted above, national trends show transit ridership increases. Honolulu transit ridership has also increased over the past several years.

8. The analysis is undertaken in the environmental review of the Project. In addition, the relevance to the Project of 2012 to 2000 data is unclear. There are other ways to decrease or maintain traffic congestion, including increasing the number of people per vehicle. The fixed guideway project, as currently planned, would carry a minimum of 8,500 people per hour per direction during peak periods, thus reducing traffic congestion as compared to the No Build Alternative. It is unclear what is meant by the "lower table" in the comment letter (no tables are found in the comment letter) so it cannot be addressed in this response.

Comment [MB26]: Provide reference.

Comment [MB27]: Is there any mention of 200 in the analysis? Census data?

Comment [MB28]: State? This language invites another comment/response.

Comment [MB29]: Provide percentage of people likely to use transit.

9. Your planned use of terminology is noted.

10. The Final EIS discusses both bus and rail transit. As noted in Section 2.5.6 of the Final EIS, "bus service will be enhanced and the bus network will be modified to coordinate with the fixed guideway system."

11-14. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project.

15. See response above (Section 1, Response 5) regarding national trends showing increases in transit ridership.

16-17. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project.

18. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. In addition, Houston does have a rail system.

19-21. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project.

22. A travel demand forecasting model was used to forecast traffic volumes at six screenlines (i.e., virtual lines that cut across the corridor used to measure the performance of the transportation system at that location) in 2030, both with and without the fixed guideway system. As seen in Tables 3-9 and 3-10 in the Final EIS, traffic volumes in 2030 will be reduced with the Project versus with the No Build Alternative. For instance, with the fixed guideway system there is an 11 percent reduction in traffic at the Kalauao screenline in the Koko Head-bound direction during the a.m. peak hour (7 a.m. to 9 a.m.) and a 10 percent reduction in the Ewa-bound direction during the p.m. peak hour (p.m. to p.m.) when compared to conditions without the fixed guideway.

23. The travel forecasting model uses guidelines established by FTA for all projects seeking federal funds from the New Starts program. According to modeling done for the Project, the fixed guideway system will relieve traffic congestion compared to the No Build Alternative. Table 3-14 in the Final EIS shows an 18 percent reduction in VHD in 2030 with the Project compared to the No Build Alternative. As stated in the previous response, traffic congestion at the Kalauao screenline will improve with the Project compared to No Build conditions. Accordingly, the Project will provide benefits to residents along the Leeward corridor.

Comment [MB30]: What about the Leeward Corridor specifically?

24. As stated previously (Section X, Response X), rail has reduced traffic congestion within the corridor within which it is built (see Salt Lake City, Dallas, etc.).

25. As noted above (General Comments), a Managed Lane Alternative meeting this general description was fully evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis phase of the Project and was demonstrated to be less effective than a Fixed Guideway Alternative. The HOT facility was not only less effective in meeting the Project's Purpose and Need, but it was also less effective financially unrealistic because it does not qualify for the GET surcharge funds or Federal New Starts funding. Tolls would also have to be excessively high to pay for the cost of the elevated lanes at (approximately \$6.60 during the peak period). Tolls would still only generate less than a quarter of the capital funding needed to build the system. This toll rate is comparable to similar systems where tolls are as high as \$10.00 during peak times (e.g., Orange County, CA—SR 91 HOT lanes).

26-27. As noted above, the Managed Lane Alternative was fully evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis phase and was demonstrated to be less effective than a Fixed Guideway Alternative. Therefore, it has not been considered as a project alternative in the Draft or Final EISs.

Comment [MB31]: 26-Note there are differences between his design/plan and what the team studied, but the similarities produce the same results.

28. The Draft and Final EISs do not consider HOT lanes, as those were eliminated for inferior performance compared to the fixed guideway during the Alternatives Analysis process, as discussed in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS. See previous comments (General Comments) regarding the alternative's inability to effectively meet Purpose and Need and financial performance requirements.

Comment [MB32]: 27-What about the variable pricing component? Not addressed.

29. See previous explanations about why HOT lanes were not included in the Draft or Final EISs. While this the BRT/HOT alternative would have reduced congestion on parallel highways, system-wide traffic congestion would have been similar to the No Build Alternative as a result of increased traffic on arterials trying to access the facility. Total islandwide VHD would have increased with the Managed Lane Alternative compared to the No Build Alternative, indicating an increase in systemwide congestion (Table 2-2 of the Final EIS), and the same result is anticipated for the BRT/HOT alternative.

30. As stated previously, two options were considered for the Managed Lane Alternative—Two-direction and Two-lane Reversible. This alternative "would have provided a two-lane elevated toll facility between Waipahu and Downtown Honolulu, with variable pricing strategies to maintain free-flow speeds for transit and high-occupancy vehicles (HOVs)." The

Alternatives Analysis phase found that this alternative had inferior performance compared to the fixed guideway alternative for reasons previously explained [\(General Comments\)](#).

31. The Alternatives Analysis Report indicated that transit reliability would not have been improved except for express bus service operation in the managed lanes. While this alternative would have slightly reduced congestion on parallel highways, system-wide traffic congestion would have been similar to the No Build Alternative as a result of increased traffic on arterials trying to access the facility. Total islandwide VHD would have increased with the Managed Lane Alternative compared to the No Build Alternative, indicating an increase in system-wide congestion. As stated in Section 2.5.1 of the Final EIS, the rail system will achieve an average of 30 mph or greater, including dwell times at stations.

Comment [MB33]: Will the highway drivers experience less congestion? Will staying on the freeway be more appealing for those reasons?

32. The capital plan for the Project is presented in Section 6.3 of the Final EIS, including a description of the amount of funding anticipated from various sources. Section 6.6 of the Final EIS describes risks and uncertainties associated with these funding assumptions. The intent of your comment is unclear. For example, reference to first-phase construction segments are inconsistent with the information in the Final EIS in Chapter 2, and the crossing of the H-1 Freeway at University Avenue is not a part of the Final EIS Project but is a potential future extension, which will be evaluated separately at a later date if the extension is pursued.

Comment [MB34]: Please address the mph comment?

Comment [MB35]: Summarize funding amounts and provide one sentence about risks/uncertainties.

33. As stated above, Section 6.3 of the Final EIS describes the anticipated funding sources for the capital cost of the Project. Capital costs of the Project, including finance charges, are expected to be fully paid by a combination of FTA Section 5309 New Starts Funds and FTA Section 5307 Funds from the Federal government and the revenues from the County General Excise Tax (GET) Surcharge levied from 2007 through 2022. As a note regarding cost overruns, the capital cost estimate includes over \$1 billion in 2009 dollars in contingencies to account for such eventualities. Section 6.4 of the Final EIS describes the funding sources for ongoing operations and maintenance anticipated for the Project. Operating and maintenance costs will utilize the same funding sources currently used for TheBus—Federal funding, fare revenues, and subsidies from the City's General and Highway Funds.

34. See the previous response regarding costs of the Project.

Comment [MB36]: TCC: Address the per capita figure? Is it necessary?

35. The analysis of the HOT facility in Honolulu from the Alternatives Analysis Report shows the cost for the HOT lanes alternative to be \$2.6 billion in 2006 dollars (higher today). As stated in the Transit Task Force Report, a committee was charged with reviewing cost estimates for the two Alternatives involving construction (Managed Lane Alternative and Fixed Guideway Alternative). The report states that "the Task Force agrees with this committee that the Alternatives Analysis' construction cost estimates were fairly and consistently prepared, and that they may be used for both planning and cost comparisons." Information was obtained by the Transit Task Force from HDOT and others familiar with HOT facilities. It is the only estimate to date that addresses Honolulu conditions.

Comment [MB37]: What is the adjustment for 2009 or 2010 dollars?

There is no substantiation of the estimate from the Tampa Bay toll facility being applicable in Honolulu. The designer of the Tampa Bay facility herself admitted that to apply such an estimate without detailed consideration of the many differences between the two

locations is not reasonable. Regarding the comparison of the Tampa Bay facility, the Transit Task Force report states that "the committee concluded that the projects are sufficiently different (actual costs versus projected costs with contingencies; available, accessible [rights-of-way] vs. construction in actively used highways; no utilities relocation vs. extensive relocations) as to make the comparison unreasonable."

Comment [MB38]: TCC: I'm not sure this is appropriate for the response letter. I recommend deleting.

36. HOT Lanes are not eligible for FTA New Starts funding.

37. The Alternatives Analysis Report shows that the estimated cost of HOT Lanes is \$2.6 billion (2006 dollars), which would be higher now. As stated in response to Comment 35 (above), this cost has been reviewed by HDOT and others.

38. Comment is missing from your letter.

39. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Rail has reduced traffic congestion within the corridor within which it is built (see Salt Lake City, Dallas, etc.). The travel forecasting model used in the environmental analysis of the Project uses guidelines established by FTA and, according to modeling done for the Project, the fixed guideway system will relieve traffic congestion compared to the No Build Alternative. Table 3-14 in the Final EIS shows an 18-percent reduction in VHD in 2030 with the Project as compared to the No Build Alternative.

40. As discussed above, a Managed Lane Alternative was studied in the Alternatives Analysis phase. This alternative was rejected for the reasons discussed above. Traffic conditions will be worse in 2030 under any circumstances and regardless of whether the fixed guideway, managed lane, or more buses are implemented. With the fixed guideway system, total islandwide congestion (as measured by VHD) would decrease by 18 percent as compared to the No Build Alternative (Table 3-14 in the Final EIS). In addition, traffic volumes were studied at various screenlines in the study corridor. The travel demand forecasting model was used to forecast traffic volumes at these screenlines in 2030, both with and without the Project. Analysis revealed that traffic volumes at these screenlines would decrease up to 11 percent with the Project during the a.m. peak hour (Table 3-9 in the Final EIS). Accordingly, traffic conditions will be substantially better with the fixed guideway than compared to the No Build Alternative.

Comment [MB39]: Do we have numbers for the Managed Lanes alternative, re: traffic volume percentages?

41. The fixed guideway project will provide an alternative to the private automobile.

42. As discussed above, the Managed Lane Alternative was fully evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis phase and demonstrated to be less effective than a Fixed Guideway Alternative for reasons previously stated in this letter.

43. As noted above, a Managed Lane Alternative meeting this general description was fully evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis phase and demonstrated to be less effective than a Fixed Guideway Alternative. The HOT facility was not only less effective in meeting the Project's Purpose and Need, but it was also financially unrealistic because it does not qualify for the GET Surcharge funds or Federal New Starts funding. Tolls would also have to be ~~excessively~~ high to pay for the cost of the elevated lanes at \$6.60 during the peak period. Tolls would still only

generate less than a quarter of the capital funding needed to build the system. This toll rate is comparable to similar systems where tolls are as high as \$10.00 during peak times (e.g., Orange County, CA—SR 91 HOT lanes).

Section 2

1-3. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. These options may have application in the right time and the right place in addition to conjunction with the fixed guideway project. The Project does not preclude this from happening. These alternatives these activities from occurring; however, they are not within the control of the City.

4-5. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. As noted above, regarding school hours, this option may have application in the right time and the right place in addition to conjunction with the fixed guideway project. The Project does not preclude these activities from occurring; however, they this from happening. This alternative is not within the control of the City.

5. ~~This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. As noted above, regarding school hours, this option may have application in the right time and the right place in addition to the fixed guideway project. The Project does not preclude this from happening. This alternative is not within the control of the City.~~

6. The State of Hawaii's Highway Modernization Plan, dated January 22, 2009, includes the \$600 million Nimitz Viaduct project. It would complement the transit project and is included in the modeling conducted for both the No Build and Project Alternatives.

Comment [MB40]: Please note whether reversible elevated lanes are included.

7. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. This option may have application in addition to the fixed guideway project. It is not likely that... The Project does not preclude this-it from happening.

8. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. This option may have application in the right time and the right place in addition to the fixed guideway project. The Project does not preclude this-it from happening. This alternative is not within the control of the City.

9. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. This option may have application in the right time and the right place in addition to the fixed guideway project. However, tThe Project does not preclude this pay-as-you-go insurance from happening. This alternative is not within the control of the City.

10. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. This option may have application in the right time and the right place in addition to the fixed guideway project. The Project does not preclude this from happening.

Comment [MB41]: State something about zoning issue/local process.

11. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. The City has a program to modernize the traffic signal system. It is in addition to and independent of the Project.

Comment [MB42]: Provide the name of the program/policy/document.

12-15. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. These options may have application in the right time and the right place in addition to the fixed guideway project. The Project does not preclude this it from happening/occurring.

16. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. This option may have application in the right time and the right place in addition to the fixed guideway project. The Project does not preclude this from happening. As mentioned in Section 4.19.2 of the Final EIS, TOD is expected to occur in project station areas as an indirect effect of the Project. In March 2009, the City Council approved and the Mayor of Honolulu signed Bill 10 (Ordinance 09-4), which defines the City's approach to TOD around fixed guideway stations. Zoning regulations, which will be developed in late 2009, will address parking standards, new density provisions, open spaces, and affordable housing. While the Project is coordinating with City and State agencies to encourage development of enhanced pedestrian and bicycle facilities and other land use changes near the stations, the actual construction of such facilities and zoning changes are beyond outside the scope of the Project.

Comment [MB43]: Update.

Comment [MB44]: Is a discussion of the Ewa Development Plan applicable here (certain areas are targeted for dense development)?

17-30. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. These options may have application in the right time and the right place in addition to the fixed guideway project. However, the Project does not preclude ~~this~~ these activities from happening.

Comment [MB45]: Are any of these activities identified in the Highway Development Plan? If so, please state/explain.

Section 3

1. A variety of bus-related alternatives were examined during the Alternatives Analysis phase, including Bus rapid transit (BRT). Bus rapid transit (BRT) was also studied in the Primary Corridor Study in 2002. The alternatives in these analyses covered a variety of options, including increasing frequency of operations on an elevated bus facility. The Alternatives Analysis revealed that the fixed guideway system was more effective at reducing congestion on the existing roadways (___ %) than a bus rapid transit system (___ %).

Comment [MB46]: Use this change if applicable.

2. The information on the South Nevada Metropolitan Area Express (MAX) system has been noted. The Alternatives Analysis showed that transit reliability would not have been improved except for express bus service operation while in the managed lanes. While this alternative would have slightly reduced congestion on parallel highways (___ %), system-wide traffic congestion (___ %) would have been similar to the No Build Alternative (___ %) as a result of increased traffic on arterials trying to access the facility. Total islandwide VHD would have increased with the Managed Lane Alternative as compared to the No Build Alternative, indicating an increase in systemwide congestion as shown in Table 2-2 in the Final EIS.

Comment [MB47]: Provide numbers.

3. The information on the Los Angeles Metro Rapid system has been noted. The Metro Rapid system relies primarily on non-exclusive right-of-way on existing roadways. As discussed in Section 3.4.2 of the Final EIS, in Honolulu there are no available options in Honolulu for improved bus service on existing roadways that are not already subject to high levels of

congestion during peak travel times, which hinder reliability and level of service ~~severely~~. The development of an exclusive right-of-way option for buses, such as the Orange Line in LA, was evaluated as part of the Managed Lane Alternative in the Alternatives Analysis phase ([General Comments](#)) as noted in previous paragraphs of this response.

4. The information on the Los Angeles Orange Line system has been noted. Please see the previous responses ([Section 3, Response 3](#)).

5. Information about TOD development has been noted. As stated in Section 4.19.2 of the Final EIS, TOD development could occur near station areas as an indirect effect of the Project. ~~As explained previously, in~~ In March 2009, the City Council approved and the Mayor of Honolulu signed Bill 10 (Ordinance 09-4), which defines the City's approach to TOD around fixed guideway stations. Future zoning regulations will address parking standards, new density provisions, open spaces, and affordable housing. Financial incentives could include public-private partnerships, real property tax credits, and infrastructure financing. While the Project [team](#) is coordinating with City and State agencies to encourage development of enhanced pedestrian and bicycle facilities and other land use changes near the stations, the actual construction of such facilities and zoning changes are beyond the scope of the Project. The [special districts](#) also encourage public input into the design of TOD neighborhood plans to reflect unique community identities. TOD planning would occur before the fixed guideway stations are constructed.

Comment [MB48]: ?

6. Information about the NJ Transit Village Initiative and Boston's TOD policies on parking, transportation mitigation, and security has been noted. A Maintenance of Traffic (MOT) and a Transit Mitigation Plan (TMP) will identify measures to mitigate temporary construction-related effects on transportation. Additionally, the MOT Plan will address effects on streets and highways, transit, businesses and residences, pedestrians and bicyclists, and parking as mentioned in Section 3.5.7 of the Final EIS. A Safety and Security Management Plan will be developed in accordance with FTA requirements to mitigate potential effects on community services as mentioned in Section 4.5.2 of the Final EIS. [In general, zoning changes are determined by the local government \(e.g., Ordinance 09-4\).](#)

7. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project.

8. Information regarding Ottawa and Pittsburgh BRT TOD has been noted. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project.

9. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information on the success of TOD developments worldwide has been noted. [For more information about TOD as it relates to the Project, see Section 3, Response 5 \(above\).](#)

10. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. The information on the [success of relationship between](#) connecting TOD to transit has been noted.

Section 4

1. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. The information on Mark Muiello and the New York Exclusive Bus Lane (XBL) has been noted.

2-7. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. The information on New York Port Authority bridges and tunnels has been noted.

8. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. The information on operational changes of the NY XBL has been noted.

9-10. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. The information on planning activities, [including their alternatives](#), and partnerships for the New York area has been noted.

11. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. The information on the pricing pilot program has been noted.

12. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. The information on the Lincoln Tunnel HOT lane study has been noted.

13. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. The information on the study of the NY Commercial vehicle priority has been noted.

14-18. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. The information on the [study-evolution](#) of the Houston contraflow and HOV lanes has been noted.

19-20. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information on Houston's HOV system connection to the Metro Rail system, parking capacity, and trips has been noted.

21-27. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information on studies pertaining to BRT in Maryland has been noted. [Please note that the Red Line Project in Maryland is a Light Rail Transit project, not a BRT project.](#)

28. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information on the Corridor Cities Transitway in Maryland has been noted.

29. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information on the Bi-County Transitway project has been noted.

30. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information on the issues with BRT projects has been noted.

31. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information on Robert Poole and [virtual](#) exclusive bus-ways [via Managed Lanes and pricing](#) has been noted.

32. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information on value pricing has been noted.

33-36. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information about the history of HOV lanes, [including carpool and vanpool information](#), has been noted.

37. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information about the sustainability of BRT in HOV lanes has been noted.

38. Information about the I-15 HOT lanes and the 91 Express lanes has been noted. The concept of HOT was considered as part of the Alternatives Analysis phase but did not perform as well as the fixed guideway in terms of travel time or delay as noted in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS. The Alternatives Analysis does not dismiss the validity of HOT lanes in the appropriate application; however, they did not perform as well as the fixed guideway [for this project](#).

39-40. See the previous response [\(Section 4, Response 38\)](#). Information about virtual exclusive busway (VEB) concepts, capacity, pricing, cost, and individual opinion to be recognized by the FTA as a viable alternative has been noted.

41. See the previous response [\(Section 4, Response 38\)](#). Information about VEB in Houston has been noted.

42. See the previous responses [\(Section 4, Response 38\)](#). Information about VEB concepts, capacity, pricing, cost, and individual opinion to be recognized by the FTA as a viable alternative has been noted.

43. See the previous responses [\(Section 4, Response 38\)](#). Information about VEB concepts and their cost has been noted.

44. It is agreed that managed lanes are being considered in a number of locations in the U.S. and that policy changes could make them acceptable to more applications through various forms of funding. As stated earlier, the validity of managed lanes is not questioned as an effective transportation alternative, but it does not perform as well as the fixed guideway in Honolulu based on the Alternatives Analysis Report findings and the information contained in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS.

Comment [MB49]: Are VEB eligible for NS funding? Please state.

45. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project.

Section 5

1. Project goals include supporting planned development. In addition to the number of trips served, which is related to the population density, planning also considers the length of trips served. The longer the trip, which would have [greater travel time savings](#), the greater the benefit received from the system. Potential Transit Markets are discussed in Section 1.6 of the Final

Comment [MB50]: Greater than what?

EIS. ~~This~~The section provides a summary of population projections, locations of employment growth, current and future transit dependent households, and resident and tourist transit markets.

2. As indicated in Section 3.4.2 of the Final EIS, overall access to public transit would be enhanced with the Project. Substantial Project ridership will be provided by local bus and people walking to the station. Bus and walk access to stations will account for “approximately 90 percent of total trips in the a.m. peak period.” (pg. X). Access to stations will be enhanced by accommodating bicyclists and pedestrians. Several stations will be located near existing or planned bicycle facilities. In addition, bus access will be enhanced to coordinate with the fixed guideway system. Lastly, park-and-ride facilities will be provided at stations with the highest demand for drive-to-transit access.

Comment [MB51]: How many people currently live within walking distance of proposed stations? Address.

3-4. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project.

Comment [MB52]: Recommend splitting 3 and 4, and mentioning Ordinance 09-4 and “local zoning” for #4.

5. With the Project, as stated in Chapter 3 of the Final EIS, the rate of transfers will be higher than under the No Build Alternative due to proposed changes in local bus service to maximize access to the fixed guideway system. However, because of the high frequency of the fixed guideway service (e.g., three-minute headways between trains during peak periods), riders transferring from buses to the fixed guideway will experience minimal wait times. Riders transferring from the guideway service to buses will benefit from improved frequencies on existing bus routes serving stations. Also, several new routes with high frequencies will be provided as feeders to the guideway system. Since these routes will primarily operate in residential areas, they will provide greater reliability versus routes operating along congested arterials. Using these systems in the proposed complementary fashion, ridership forecasts are ~~for~~ 116,000 riders daily on the Project as noted in Chapters 2 and 3 of the Final EIS. This is higher than any of the options evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis phase or in the Draft EIS.

Comment [MB53]: Were surveys completed, regarding ridership and whether people would take it?

6. Chapter 3 of the Final EIS states that adding substantial passenger capacity with more buses is not feasible in some key locations along the system because of roadway capacity constraints. Choke points occur in Downtown Honolulu during the a.m. peak period (7 a.m. to 9 a.m.), especially at the merger of North Beretania, North King, and Liliha Streets and Dillingham Boulevard and along Hotel Street. King Street has been used to introduce new service in recent years due to the capacity limitation of Hotel Street; however, choke points occur at the Chinatown bus stops and at the Punchbowl Street and King Street stops. Buses often must wait to move into an open and safe boarding position. Continuing to add additional service to King Street without major physical improvements would add to the gridlock in this corridor, deteriorate transit service, and complicate pedestrian and traffic safety issues. In the p.m. peak period (X p.m. to Y p.m.), choke points occur along Beretania Street, Hotel Street, Nimitz Highway, and Ala Moana Boulevard in the Downtown area.

Several routes, including CountryExpress! Routes C, D, and E, are projected to be overloaded in 2030. Increasing frequency would require headways at of five minutes or less. Further, the Downtown street network cannot support the number of buses that would be required to meet projected demand. These system capacity limitations are a major obstacle to an effective addition of bus service in the corridor. The Alternatives Analysis Report showed that

an enhancement to the bus system would provide minimal benefit because it is subject to the same congestion impediments as that already exist on the highway system.

7-8. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. The many improvements you have proposed could be part of a comprehensive program of transportation improvements. They offer additional benefit, but do not replace the need for the fixed guideway.

Comment [MB54]: Offer to forward comments to HDOT?

9. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. The Project does provides the opportunity for the development of TOD, which is expected as an indirect effect of the Project.

Comment [MB55]: Restate P&N, too.

10-12. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Please see previous responses regarding buses, HOT lanes, and TOD.

13. As noted in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, many other alternative approaches were evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis phase and rejected because they do not offer the capacity and other benefits of the elevated rail system proposed for the City of Honolulu.

Section 6

1. The island's unique visual character and scenic beauty was-were considered in the visual and aesthetic analysis presented in the Final EIS. The Project will be set in an urban context where visual change is expected and differences in scales of structures are typical. The following measures will be included with the Project to minimize negative visual effects and enhance the visual and aesthetic opportunities that it creates:

Comment [MB56]: Provide section(s).

- Develop and apply design guidelines that will establish a consistent design framework for the Project with consideration of local context.
- Coordinate the project design with City's TOD program within the Department of Planning and Permitting.
- Consult with the communities surrounding each station for input on station design elements.
- Consider specific sites for landscaping and trees during the final design phase when plans for new plantings will be prepared by a landscape architect. Landscape and streetscape improvements will serve to mitigate potential visual impacts.

It should also be noted that the Project will provide users, including tourists, with expansive views from several portions of the corridor by elevating riders above highway traffic, street trees, and low structures adjacent to the alignment. In Section 4.8.3 of the Final EIS under the heading Design Principals and Mitigation, specific environmental, architecture and landscape design criteria are listed that will help minimize visual effects of the Project.

Comment [MB57]: Provide a few examples.

2. The highways will carry more vehicles in 2030 under any circumstances and regardless of which solution is applied. 2005 traffic volume data for the H-1 Freeway reports 10,140 vehicles per hour (vph) at the Kalauao screenline in the Koko Head-bound direction during the a.m. peak hour (7 a.m. to 9 a.m.). This number is predicted to increase to 13,160 vph under 2030 No Build conditions; however, this number is lower with the fixed guideway (12,190 vph). The Alternatives Analysis Report showed that traffic volumes on the H-1 Freeway were worse with the Managed Lane Alternative than with the fixed guideway. Accordingly, traffic conditions will be better with the fixed guideway than any of the other potential solutions studied, including managed lanes and additional bus service.

Comment [MB58]: Provide.

3. Screened alternatives included a No Build Alternative, a Transportation System Management Alternative (TSM) (enhanced bus service), and a number of Build Alternatives. The comparison of alternatives presented in the Alternatives Analysis Report concluded that the TSM Alternative would provide little benefit at a relatively low cost. A brief description of the TSM Alternative is provided in Section 2.1.2 of the Draft EIS.

Comment [MB59]: Doesn't address incoming comment fully.

4. The train will travel from one end of the line to the other in 42 minutes, including stops at all stations. That is about 30 mph on average and can be delivered regardless of the time of day or the conditions on the highways. As shown in Section 2.2.2 of the Final EIS, transit reliability would not have been improved in any of the other options evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis phase or the Draft EIS except for express bus service operation in the managed lanes during the portion of the trip in the lanes. While this alternative would have slightly reduced congestion on parallel highways, systemwide traffic congestion would have been similar to the No Build Alternative as a result of increased traffic on arterials trying to access the facility. The TSM Alternative would have generated fewer hours of transit-user benefits than either the Managed Lane or Fixed Guideway Alternative. Since most buses would still operate in mixed traffic, the TSM Alternative would have done little to improve corridor mobility and travel reliability.

Comment [MB60]: Provide data to support claims.

Comment [MB61]: Unclear to the reader. Revise to make clearer.

5. With the Project, as stated in Chapter 3 of the Final EIS, the rate of transfers will be higher than under the No Build Alternative due to proposed changes in local bus service to maximize access to the fixed guideway system. However, because of the high frequency of the fixed guideway service (three-minute headways between trains during peak periods), riders transferring from buses to the fixed guideway will experience minimal wait times. Riders transferring from the guideway service to buses will benefit from improved frequencies on existing bus routes serving stations. Also, several new routes with high frequencies will be provided as feeders to the guideway system. Since these routes will primarily operate in residential areas, they will provide greater reliability versus routes operating along congested arterials. The travel demand forecasting model includes a time penalty for transfers. With these characteristics in place, the transit system with the Project would still have ridership levels 44 percent higher than the No Build Alternative (i.e., continuation of existing bus service).

Comment [MB62]: Cost/rider figure? Is there evidence we can use to support our data to better explain our project and counter his figures?

6. The highways will carry more vehicles in 2030 under any circumstances and regardless of which solution is applied, though the fixed guideway will offset those numbers. Traffic volume data for the H-1 Freeway reports 10,140 vph at the Kalauao screenline in the

Comment [MB63]: Please verify before accepting.

Koko Head-bound direction during the a.m. peak hour (7 a.m. to 9 a.m.). This number is predicted to increase to 13,160 vph under 2030 No Build conditions; however, this number is lower with the fixed guideway (12,190 vph). Accordingly, traffic conditions will be better with the fixed guideway than any of the other potential solutions studied, including managed lanes and additional bus service. In addition, the Alternatives Analysis did not show an improvement in traffic congestion on the H-1 Freeway with the Managed Lane Alternative compared to the No Build Alternative.

Comment [MB64]: Provide VPH.

Comment [MB65]: Provide VPH.

7. This analysis was included in the evaluation of the Managed Lane Alternative in the Alternatives Analysis. It accommodated toll-free travel for buses and HOVs to travel free and a toll for single-occupant vehicles. However, this alternative was not selected. The proposed fixed guideway system will not share space with other vehicles due to safety concerns.

Comment [MB66]: Please verify these statements and further populate if possible.

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

The amount of service provided on the fixed guideway will be scaled to generally match the demand. If the service attracts fewer riders than expected, then less service may be provided, by adjusting headways or train length, thereby resulting in lower than expected operating and maintenance costs than currently projected. There is no plan to offer free ridership on the fixed guideway system.

8. As discussed previously, adding substantial passenger capacity with more buses is not feasible in some keyvarious locations along the system because of roadway capacity constraints, as shown in Section 3.4.2 of the Final EIS.

Comment [MB67]: Cite Section and Comment numbers.

9. Overall system reliability, considering all factors, for a fully grade-separated transit system is substantially greater than for any system operating in mixed-flow conditions. In Honolulu, there is no practical difference between the proposed rail system and TheBus regarding labor considerations. The same is true for the Project or any other system, such as the Managed Lane Alternative.

Comment [MB68]: Is Callan correct in that there will not be a bid process for this project?

10. There is no indication that damage to a fixed guideway would be any more difficult to repair than an elevated roadway. The chance of a transit vehicle being stopped by a disabled vehicle is much greater in any form of mixed traffic flow, such as managed lanes, than in an exclusive right-of-way carrying only routinely maintained rail vehicles. In the event of a closure to the H-1 Freeway, a substantially greater number of people would be accommodated by a fixed guideway transit system than in two highway lanes being used to detour traffic.

11. Section 6.3 of the Final EIS describes the anticipated-needed financial resources needed-anticipated to pay for the capital cost of the Project, including finance charges. Capital costs are expected to be fully paid for by a combination of FTA Section 5309 New Starts and FTA Section 5307 Funds from the Federal government and revenues from the County General Excise Tax Surcharge levied from 2007 through 2022 on Oahu. The Managed Lane Alternative cost estimate was \$2.6 billion in 2006 dollars. It provides less benefit per dollar spent than the Project as indicated in the Alternative Analysis and in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS.

Comment [MB69]: Update figure to 2009 or 2010 figure.

Comment [MB70]: Provide figures.

As stated in Section 4.11.3 of the Final EIS, the Project is anticipated to reduce daily transportation energy demand by approximately 3 percent compared to the No Build Alternative.

Comment [MB71]: What does this mean? Explain to the reader.

The Project will consume approximately 1 to 2 percent of the total projected electricity generated on Oahu in 2030. According to the Hawaiian Electric Company (HECO), the planned electricity generation capacity on Oahu will be sufficient to support the transit system, but the electricity distribution system will require various upgrades to support the system. HECO is moving toward renewable energy generation. As that happens, the fixed guideway will also benefit from such new sources of energy.

12. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information about the quality of buses has been noted. As shown in Figure 3-7 of the Final EIS, transit travel with the Project will be substantially faster than transit travel under No Build conditions. This travel time includes transfers. As stated in Section 3.4.2, operation of the fixed guideway in exclusive right-of-way will improve convenience. For riders who stand, the guideway service will also provide increased safety ~~compared to frequent stop and go travel that occurs on buses that travel in mixed traffic on uneven roadway surfaces (e.g., X, Y, Z).~~

Comment [MB72]: Provide examples of these safety features.

13. The EIS does not address tolling because the Project does not include any tolled facilities. Tolls were considered ~~in during~~ the Alternatives Analysis phase ~~in for~~ the Managed Lane Alternative. Tolls of \$6.60 during the peak period were used and able to fund only 25 percent of the capital cost of the elevated lane project. In other places, such as Orange County, California, the SR-91 tolls rise to \$10 during the peak times of the week. Similar costs are forecast for the HOT lanes on the Dulles Expressway.

Comment [MB73]: Why didn't we examine a higher toll? Provide justification here.

14. Implementation of the Managed Lane Alternative would have resulted in increased automobile use on Oahu relative to all other alternatives evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis phase ~~(for more information, see Section X, Response Y).~~

Comment [MB74]: Provide this information.

15. Project goals include supporting planned development. The objective of this goal is to avoid the dispersal of development which will lead to more sprawl in parts of the island unable to support it. In addition to the number of trips served, which is related to the population density, planning of the system considers the length of trips served. The Project will help shape future development. Jobs and housing are more likely to locate closer to each other with the Project based on the experience in all other rail projects over the past 20 years. ~~The Project has developed plans to prevent safety and security problems at stations and will provide staffing at stations to support those plans. Ridership forecasts, on the other hand, are made without the benefit of speculation about what type of land uses might locate near transit stations. The FTA only allows approved development or imminent plans to be considered in planning the system.~~

Comment [MB75]: Mention the benefit of having a fixed system as opposed to one that can change frequently?

Comment [MB76]: Provide examples.

Comment [MB77]: Provide more detail. You do not directly address his comment.

16. The Final EIS does not consider HOT lanes, as those were eliminated ~~for inferior performance compared to the fixed guideway~~ during the Alternatives Analysis process, as discussed in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS.

Comment [MB78]: Address what factors were included when developing the costs in the AA.

17. The Managed Lane Alternative was fully evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis phase and demonstrated to be less effective than a Fixed Guideway Alternative. The engineering cost estimate for a two-lane reversible managed lane facility, which was calculated following the same rigorous cost estimating process used for the Fixed Guideway Alternatives, was \$2.6 billion in 2006 dollars. The zipper lane was eliminated in evaluation of the reversible facility because with

Comment [MB79]: Update figure to 2009 or 2010.

the additional lanes, the demand and capacity would be better balanced without the zipper lane. Implementation of the zipper lane results in the loss of two lanes of capacity in the reverse direction. By 2030, the directional transportation demand will be more balanced than it is today. Eliminating the zipper lane, while evaluating the reversible Managed Lane Alternative, provided the greatest benefit to modeled freeway users by increasing capacity in both directions. Access ramps were provided at several locations. Park-and-ride facilities and bus stops were included to maximize transit use, providing the alternative the greatest opportunity to generate transit user benefits.

The City Council's Transit Advisory Task Force, which reviewed the Alternatives Analysis, concluded in their report of December 14, 2006, that the assessment of each alternative was "fair and accurate" and that capital cost estimates were compiled using the same methodology and unit cost and that the construction cost estimates were fairly and consistently prepared.

The Managed Lane Alternative was evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis and demonstrated to be less effective than a Fixed Guideway Alternative. The findings are summarized in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS as follows:

The Managed Lane Alternative was evaluated for its ability to meet project goals and objectives related to mobility and accessibility, supporting planned growth and economic development, constructability and cost, community and environmental quality, and planning consistency. VMT would have increased compared to any of the other alternatives. While this alternative would have reduced congestion on parallel highways, system-wide traffic congestion would have been similar to the No Build Alternative as a result of increased traffic on arterials trying to access the facility. Total islandwide VHD would have increased with the Two-lane Reversible Option as compared to the No Build Alternative, indicating an increase in system-wide congestion. Transit reliability would not have been improved except for express bus service operating in the managed lanes. The Managed Lane Alternative would not have supported planned concentrated future population and employment growth because it would not provide concentrations of transit service that would serve as a nucleus for TOD. The Managed Lane Alternative would have provided little transit benefit at a high cost. The cost-per-hour of transit-user benefits for the Managed Lane Alternative would have been two to three times higher than that for the Fixed Guideway Alternative. Similar to the TSM Alternative, the Managed Lane Alternative would not have substantially improved service or access to transit for transit-dependent communities.

Comment [MB80]: Address the "superficial" meetings comment. Explain how input was taken into consideration by the Project Team, etc.

Section 7

1. Adding buses and elevated HOT Lanes were evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis phase and eliminated because they did not perform as well as the fixed guideway, as described in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS. In addition, riders can will be able to access the fixed guideway system by all the modes listed in this comment.

2. Adding substantial passenger capacity with more buses, even larger buses, is not feasible in some key locations along the system because of roadway capacity constraints as shown in Section 3.4.2 of the Final EIS. Even with the fixed guideway, buses will continue to carry the largest portion of transit users (about 78 percent). The difference is TheBus will be operated in support of the fixed guideway where and that intermodal linkage provides for a more efficient trip. Bicycles will be accommodated on the rail vehicles. A policy is in development regarding bicycle accommodation on rail vehicles.

Comment [MB81]: More detail needed.

3. As mentioned in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, transit reliability would not have been improved except for express bus service operation in the managed lanes. While the Managed Lanes Alternative would have slightly reduced congestion on parallel highways, system-wide traffic congestion would have been similar to the No Build Alternative as a result of increased traffic on arterials trying to access the facility. Transit travel times for the Project compared to Existing Conditions and the No Build Alternative are shown on Figure 3-7, and travel speeds in Table 3-15 of the Final EIS. In all cases, the transit performance is improved with the Project.

Comment [MB82]: Are travel times available?

Comment [MB83]: Provide in parentheses.

4. As shown in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, even using a managed lane for part of the trip, most buses still operate primarily in mixed traffic. That results in little improvement in corridor mobility and travel reliability even though the portion in the special lanes improves. Buses can travel at reasonable speeds in the special lanes but still must may need to negotiate very congested access points which obviate much of the benefit of the concept. This which prevents them buses from achieving the travel time claims-identified in the comment.

5. As noted in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, adding buses and HOT lanes has been were studied in the Alternatives Analysis phase and eliminated because those options did not perform as well as the fixed guideway, which is the subject of the Final EIS.

6. With the Project, as stated previously (see Section X, Response X), the rate of transfers will be higher than under the No Build Alternative due to proposed changes in local bus service to maximize access to the fixed guideway system. However, because of the high frequency of the fixed guideway service (three-minute headways between trains during peak periods), riders transferring from buses to the fixed guideway will experience minimal wait times. Riders transferring from the guideway service to buses will benefit from improved frequencies on existing bus routes serving stations. Also, several new routes with high frequencies will be provided as feeders to the guideway system. Since these routes will primarily operate in residential areas, they will provide greater reliability versus routes operating along congested arterials.

The travel demand forecasting model includes a time penalty for transfers. With these characteristics in place, the transit system with the Project will still have ridership levels 44 percent higher than the No Build Alternative due to the fixed guideway, feeder bus routes, and TheBus routes. In addition, as stated in Section 1.2 of the Final EIS, 63 percent of Oahu population and 80 percent of employment are located within the study corridor. By 2030, these distributions will increase to 69 percent and 83 percent, respectively. Lastly, the fixed guideway system provides park-and-ride lots at the stations with the highest projected drive-to-transit demand. While people typically try to minimize transfers on any trip, the more fundamental criterion for making a trip decision is how long the trip takes. Rail will offer people a shorter overall trip time compared to other options even with the transfers, as noted in Section 3.4.2 of the Final EIS.

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

Comment [MB84]: Provide figures.

7. As stated in response to a previous comment (Section X, Response X), those transferring to the rail from TheBus will experience minimal wait times. Riders transferring from the guideway service to buses will benefit from improved frequencies on bus routes serving stations. As stated in Chapter 3 of the Final EIS, all stations will be equipped with escalators and elevators. Stations will also have covered waiting areas.

Comment [MB85]: Provide a range of headways.

8. As stated in Response 33-36 under Section 4, the Alternatives Analysis Report showed the cost of the Managed Lane Alternative to be \$2.6 billion (vetted by HDOT and other experts familiar with Hawaii's terrain and soil), compared to the fixed guideway at \$3.5 billion, and had little benefit to users compared to the fixed guideway. The Tampa Bay experience is not typical and could not be duplicated in Honolulu. The designer of the Tampa Bay facility herself admitted that to apply such an estimate without detailed consideration of the many differences between the two locations that need to be considered (e.g., X, Y, and Z) is not reasonable.

Comment [MB86]: List any other factors special for Hawaii that would be considered.

9. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information about other cities building HOT lanes and population numbers has been noted. Recognizing each city is unique, no other single city has been used as a model for Honolulu in developing the characteristics of the rail system.

10. The Alternatives Analysis phase evaluated an expanded bus system (TSM Alternative) and showed it did not perform in a satisfactory manner compared to the fixed guideway. This is discussed in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS. Ridership for the TSM Alternative grows-increases to only-7 percent over the No Build Alternative compared to 38 percent for the Project over the No Build. As stated previously, the amount of service provided will be scaled to generally match the demand.

11. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Prior BRT planning programs are not part of the current Project or EIS.

Comment [MB87]: Is he referring to the BRT studied in the AA process?

12. As stated previously, the Project will consume 1 to 2 percent of the total projected electricity generated on Oahu in 2030. The Final EIS indicates that the Project will reduce energy consumption by about 2,000 MBTUs over the No Build. This represents about 15,000 gallons of fuel saved per day. Alternative energy sources, such as photo-voltaic cells, can be

built into the rail system as the development of alternative energy sources continues. The Project will still rely on HECO for energy, but the planned electricity generation capacity on Oahu will be sufficient to support the transit system.

13. As presented in the Alternatives Analysis Report and summarized in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, the cost for a two-lane reversible managed lane facility, which was calculated following the same cost estimating process used for the Fixed Guideway Alternatives, is \$2.6 billion in 2006 dollars. The fixed guideway alternatives were calculated following the same cost estimating process. Toll revenue would pay for less than 25 percent of the cost, based on a \$XX toll. The construction of numerous off-ramps and parking facilities would require acquisition of property and displacement of current businesses and residents, all of which are included in cost estimates, when applicable.

Comment [MB88]: Update to 2009 or 2010 numbers.

Comment [MB89]: How was this figure decided upon?

14. The Project consists of the construction and implementation of rail transit service and that is what is (analyzed in the Final EIS). As mentioned in Section 4.19.2 of the Final EIS, TOD is anticipated in project station areas as an indirect effect of the Project. The increased mobility and accessibility that the Project may provide will also increase the desirability and value of land near the stations, thereby attracting new real estate investment (in the form of TOD). Planning and zoning around station areas is the responsibility of the City's Department of Planning and Permitting in compliance with the City's new TOD Ordinance 09-4.

15. The Project provides a variety of ways to access the fixed guideway and does not account for the possibility of TOD in the forecasts of ridership. If riders live nearby, they can walk or bike, and if they live further away, they can drive and park or take the bus. Bicycle/pedestrian facilities, as well as park-and-ride facilities are included in the Project. Chapter 3 of the Final EIS details ridership characteristics and system usage on a station-by-station basis, which shows ridership is not impeded by the planned station locations.

Section 8

1. The Managed Lane Alternative was evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis phase and demonstrated to be less effective than a Fixed Guideway Alternative. The findings are summarized in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS.

2. Regarding "main myths," in the case of the Honolulu system, rail does perform better overall in these measures listed, including construction costs, if the bus system requires that a new guideway be built. The Alternatives Analysis phase compared an expansion of the bus system against the fixed guideway. Unlike the Project, while the bus expansion is less costly, it provides no measurable benefit compared to the No Build Alternative. As discussed in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, the Managed Lane Alternative would have generated the greatest amount of air pollution, required the greatest amount of energy for transportation use, and resulted in the largest number of transportation noise impacts of all the alternatives evaluated.

3. Regarding speed, most buses still operate in mixed traffic, meaning little less improvement in corridor mobility and travel reliability than the fixed guideway system. As shown in the Alternatives Analysis Report and Section 2.2.2 of the Final EIS, transit reliability would not

have been improved except for express bus service operation in the managed lanes. While a Managed Lane Alternative would have slightly reduced congestion on parallel highways by % according to the Alternatives Analysis Report, system-wide traffic congestion would have been similar to the No Build Alternative as a result of increased traffic on arterials trying to access the facility. As shown in Chapter 3 of the Final EIS, travel time by rail from East Kapolei to Ala Moana Center will take 42 minutes with the Project, regardless of the time of day or conditions on surrounding roadways. As shown in Figure 3-7, transit travel time during the a.m. peak period (7 a.m. to 9 a.m.) from Kapolei to Downtown will take approximately 55 minutes door to door compared to approximately 90 minutes with the Project.

Comment [MB90]: This sentence is confusing. Please revisit.

4. Chapters 2 and 3 of the Final EIS state that the system will have a minimum capacity exceeding 17,300 passengers per direction during the two-hour peak period. If demand warrants, the system can expand to a four-car train and run at 90-second intervals, increasing capacity by over 100 percent. Also, like a bus system, during the off-peak periods, the service level is reduced to use equipment and other resources efficiently.

5. Regarding "Myth 3", overall system reliability, considering all factors, for a fully grade-separated transit system is substantially greater than for any system operating in mixed-flow conditions. Breakdowns do not affect the operation of the system beyond removal of the defective equipment. The system is designed to allow trains to continue functioning even if there is an obstruction in the line. Though transit strikes in Honolulu have been infrequent, labor unions can be expected to be part of the operation of the system, so there is the possibility of a work stoppage under some circumstances. That does not obviate the benefit of the Project. Though strikes can be disruptive, the Project would provide service well over 99 percent of the time based on the past ten years of transit labor history on Oahu.

Comment [MB91]: Define when first used in the letter.

Comment [MB92]: How is that possible?

Comment [MB93]: Can you provide your supporting data to make this claim?

6. Regarding "Myth 4", according to the FTA's Safety Management Information Statistics for 1997, the most recent data available in the Transportation Research Board (TRB) Report, Improving Transit Security, there was one serious offense for every one million passenger miles carried on rail. There is a need for security on transit systems, just as there is a need for police and other security in all aspects of modern society with other transportation modes (e.g., airports and ports), but there is no evidence that crime rates associated with transit are any higher than for society in general. The costs of security are included in the operating costs for the Project. DTS, with assistance from the Honolulu Police Department, is developing a security plan for transit facilities, including park-and-ride lots. Security, including cameras, will be provided at all stations and park-and-ride facilities.

Comment [MB94]: Bold statement. Can you cite a report or article that states this information? If it's a subjective statement, remove it.

Comment [MB95]: Will it be made available to the public for review?

7. Regarding "Myth 5", information about the cost of the Managed Lane Alternative versus the Fixed Guideway is shown in the Alternatives Analysis Report. The Project is more expensive than the Managed Lane Alternative but provides substantially higher benefits in terms of reliability, mobility, access to planned development, and transportation system equity compared to the No Build Alternative. The Project is subject to the same bidding process as that would be applied to the construction of an elevated managed lane facility.

Comment [MB96]: Too subjective.

8. Regarding "Myth 6", the Managed Lane Alternative was evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis phase and eliminated because it did not perform as effectively, as the Fixed Guideway

Alternative, as noted in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS. Details in the comment regarding other locations are inconsistent with the findings of a comprehensive analysis completed in the Alternatives Analysis for Honolulu. As stated in Response 35 under Section 1, the Tampa Bay example is unique and not duplicable for the same costs in Honolulu ~~as noted by the designer of the Tampa Bay elevated lanes due to X, Y, and Z~~. The estimate for construction of the Managed Lane in Honolulu was reviewed by HDOT and others ~~during the Alternatives Analysis process~~ and found to be consistent with cost experience in Hawaii.

Comment [MB97]: Land conditions, etc.

Comment [MB98]: Make sure this is an accurate statement before accepting.

9. Regarding "Myth 7", while it may be true that auto pollution is less when cars are traveling on uncongested roadways, this comment is not related to the project alternatives or effects.

10. As shown in the Alternatives Analysis Report, both the TSM and Managed Lane Alternatives showed small increases in transit ridership compared to the No Build Alternative while the Fixed Guideway Alternative showed substantial increases in ridership. The Project will provide feeder bus service to surrounding communities.

Comment [MB99]: Were the TSM/Managed Lane compared to the Fixed Guideway alt? I think Callan is more interested in the direct comparison.

11. Regarding "Myth 8", as shown in Table 3-7 in the Transportation Technical Report, ridership on TheBus (including TheHandi-Van) has been ~~rising~~ increasing. The increase in resident daily transit trips from 166,400 in 2007 to 255,500 (Table 3-13 of the Final EIS) in 2030 with the Project represents a 53.5-percent increase for this 23-year period. This represents a compound annual growth rate of less than 2 percent. This is a reasonable expectation with the addition of a grade-separated fixed guideway line to the transportation system. Increases of this magnitude ~~and higher~~ are not uncommon in other U.S. transit systems.

Comment [MB100]: Can you cite this information? I wouldn't use a subjective response here.

12. Regarding "Myth 9", as stated above, the Final EIS indicates that the Project will reduce energy consumption over the No Build. Table 4-21 of the Final EIS shows that construction of the Project will reduce energy consumption for transportation by 3 percent over the No Build Alternative. The construction of the Project is ~~expected~~ anticipated to consume approximately 7.5 million MBTUs. ~~Construction projects of Other~~ similar magnitude construction would be expected to use a similar amount of energy.

Comment [MB101]: Please clarify. This sentence is confusing as currently written.

13. Regarding "Myth 10", according to information provided by HECO, transportation ~~(e.g., X, Y, and Z)~~ accounts for 63 percent of Hawaii's imported oil while electrical generation ~~(e.g., X, Y, and Z)~~ consumes 30 percent of the imported oil. Currently, 11 percent of the electricity on Oahu is generated by renewable resources. HECO is currently soliciting proposals for 100 MW of renewable-energy ~~non-firm~~ generating capacity to be in service between 2010 and 2014.

Comment [MB102]: ?

The transit system will allow for a decrease in automobile use, thereby reducing the amount of oil required for transportation while only using about 1 to 2 percent of the electrical generating capacity through HECO and other independent power producers in 2030. The Project does not require the construction of a new power plant. Emergency generators will be provided at stations, ~~but they~~ They are a safety and security requirement for stations. They do not draw additional electrical energy unless in use.

14. Regarding "Myth 11", this comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information regarding the Vancouver Skytrain is noted. However, similar to Vancouver's Skytrain, the Honolulu fixed guideway system will be integrated with the buses.

Comment [MB103]: But will the fare cards be integrated? That's Callan's point.

15. Regarding "Myth 12", this comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information regarding the Vancouver transportation system is noted.

16. Regarding "Myth 13", this comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information regarding Buenos Aires, Atlantic City, Hong Kong, and Asia is noted.

Comment [MB104]: Will subsidies be provided for the Project (fixed guideway and feeder buses)? Please address.

17. Regarding "Myth 14", this comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information regarding transit ridership trends in Pittsburgh is noted.

18-19. These comments are not related to the environmental analysis of the Project. Information regarding transit ridership trends in Pittsburgh is noted.

20-21. Regarding "Myth 16", the American Public Transportation Association's 2008 Public Transportation Fact Book states: "Since 1995, public transportation ridership in the U.S. grew by more than 32 percent, faster than highway travel or the U.S. population." Data from the American Public Transportation Association is based on information reported by transit agencies regarding various aspects of transit ridership. Census data is based on more general information and does not adequately reflect transit trends; the Census data cited in the comment letter is regarding people using transit to commute only.

22-23. Regarding "Myth 17", the ridership forecast for the fixed guideway project is over 116,000 boardings a day in 2030 (Table 3-18 of the Final EIS). As stated in Section 3.4.2 of the Final EIS, of the 116,000 boardings a day, more than 40,000 are riders who, in the absence of the fixed guideway, would have had to take use a car and further congeston the freeways and highways of the island. Travel forecasting models and methodologies are developed using FTA guidance and procedures. The forecasts in the Final EIS have been reviewed and approved by the FTA.

Comment [MB105]: Please note where detailed information can be found regarding FTA guidance/procedures as well as your data/methodology.

24. Regarding "Myth 18", this comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project.

Comment [MB106]: Offer to forward comment to HDOT?

25. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project.

Comment [MB107]: What is the percentage of the population expected to use the facility? Is it 10% as stated in the comment?

26. Regarding "Myth 19", this statement does not appear in the Draft or Final EISs. Provide a range of commute time (one-way) here.

27. Table 7-2 of the Final EIS shows that a transit trip from Waianae to UH Manoa will take 121 minutes (two hours) with one transfer in 2030 without the Project (No Build Alternative), and 93 minutes (with two transfers) for the Project.

28. Regarding "Myth 20", it is not clear what the source of your comment is, but the intent appears to be a concern about an increase in transfers. There will be an increase in

transfers with the fixed guideway, but even with the transfers, overall travel times will be substantially shorter as noted in Figure 3-7 of the Final EIS, [and noted in Section 8, Response 27](#).

29. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project.

Comment [MB108]: You have the background knowledge to address this comment, however.

30. Regarding "Myth 21", the evaluated Managed Lane Alternative from the Alternatives Analysis phase includes ramps at several locations, including Aloha Stadium and Middle Street. Any increase in the number of access points to the facility will result in additional right-of-way requirements and additional costs beyond the estimate of \$2.6 billion in 2006 dollars.

Comment [MB109]: Same comment as before, though I realize that might throw many of the comparisons/numbers off. If you decide to stick with 2006 numbers, then state in the first example why you are using 2006 numbers/figures.

31. As described in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, the City has selected steel wheels operating on steel rail transit. There will be an uninterruptible power supply (UPS) at each station, with capability to energize critical systems, such as lighting and communications, for a few hours in the case of a temporary power outage. There will also be a UPS backup for the Operations Control Center (OCC) and a backup diesel generator for long-term backup of the OCC. There will also be a special connection at each station to allow for a portable generator to be used in case of a longer-term outage affecting a single station. The FTA requires that a project begin Preliminary Engineering before the Final EIS is completed. Information from Preliminary Engineering is required to assess all significant impacts that would result from project implementation.

32. The Federal New Starts process can be ~~done-completed~~ in different ways, by either an Alternatives Analysis/EIS or an EIS/Preliminary Engineering. The EIS is not required prior to Preliminary Engineering. In fact, the latter approach allows for a better understanding of the project because more information is known about the details as the environmental work is completed.

Comment [MB110]: This section is very confusing. Please revisit.

33. Chapter 6 of the Final EIS describes the needed financial resources anticipated to pay for the capital cost of the Project and for ongoing operating and maintenance costs. Capital costs of the Project, including finance charges, are expected to be fully paid for by a combination of FTA Sections 5307 and 5309 New Starts Funds from the Federal government and the GET surcharge revenues collected from 2007 through 2022 on Oahu. Operating and maintenance costs will be paid for using the same sources currently used for TheBus—Federal funding, fare revenues, and City revenues from the General and Highway Funds.

Comment [MB111]: Please provide the funding amounts after each funding source in parentheses.

Comment [MB112]: Any way the local citizens will pay, outside of the GET? Please note, if applicable.

34. As described above, the Managed Lane Alternative was evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis Phase and demonstrated to be less effective than a Fixed Guideway Alternative.

Comment [MB113]: Refer to one of the earlier comment responses, too.

Section 9

1-11 and a. With the Project, as stated in Chapter 3 of the Final EIS, the rate of transfers would be higher than under the No Build Alternative due to proposed changes in local bus service to maximize access to the fixed guideway system. However, because of the high frequency of the fixed guideway service (three-minute headways between trains during peak periods), riders transferring from buses to the fixed guideway will experience minimal wait times.

Riders transferring from the guideway service to buses will benefit from improved frequencies on existing bus routes serving stations. Also, several new routes with high frequencies will be provided as feeders to the guideway system. Since these routes will primarily operate in residential areas, they will provide greater reliability versus routes operating along congested arterials. The travel demand forecasting model includes a time penalty for transfers. Ridership forecasts increase 44 percent over the No Build Alternative despite a higher rate of transfers. While people typically try to minimize transfers on any trip, the more fundamental criterion for making a trip decision is how long the trip takes. Rail will offer people a shorter overall trip time compared to other options even with the transfers, as noted in Section 3.4.2 of the Final EIS.

12. As stated in Section 3.4.2 of the Final EIS, for those leaving stations in the a.m. two-hour peak period (7 a.m. to 9 a.m.), egress via walking dominates, particularly at stations with large employment concentrations. Table 3-20 of the Final EIS shows the mode of access information for each fixed guideway station.

Comment [MB114]: Provide definition for reader.

13. The fixed guideway system will directly serve the Airport. As shown in Table 2-7 of the Final EIS, trains will serve stations every 3 minutes during peak periods and up to every 10 minutes during off-peak periods.

14. As stated in the Alternatives Analysis Report and Section 2.2.2 of the Final EIS, enhanced bus service was examined during the Alternatives Analysis and rejected because this alternative would not have improved roadway congestion.

15. Tourist use of rail with luggage is estimated to be very low. Other tourist use, such as shopping or visiting sites of interest, would represent about 7 percent of total usage. As stated in Chapter 3 of the Final EIS, approximately 9,900 visitors will use the fixed guideway daily of which 1,800 are to or from the airport.

Section 10

1. This comment is not related to the environmental analysis of the Project.

2. The Managed Lane Alternative was evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis Phase and demonstrated to be less effective than a Fixed Guideway Alternative for reasons previously explained. Person-capacity is less for a roadway solution. Improved traffic congestion compared to the No Build Alternative will result in improved operations of roadway users.

Comment [MB115]: Mention tolls, too.

Comment [MB116]: Jargon. Please be clear.

Comment [MB117]: Incomplete thought. Please provide more information.

3. Rail transit will be provided by DTS or their selected operator. As stated previously, though transit strikes in Honolulu have been infrequent, labor unions can be expected to be part of the operation of the system, so there is the possibility of a work stoppage under some circumstances. However, that does not obviate the benefit of the Project.

4. An increase in the bus fleet was addressed in the Alternatives Analysis Phase under the TSM Alternative, as noted in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS. It did not improve conditions because of existing congestion on the highway system and was eliminated from further consideration in favor of the fixed guideway that is the subject of the Final EIS.

Comment [MB118]: Were dedicated bus lanes identified?

5. Such express bus service fails to serve any intermediate points. Additionally, if any portion of the bus trip is within mixed traffic flow, travel time reliability is less than an exclusive right-of-way fixed guideway system.

6. There is no indication that damage to a fixed guideway would be any more difficult to repair than to an elevated roadway/busway.

7. For a high-volume transit system, operating costs are higher per passenger for bus compared to rail service. The greatest cost of transit is the labor cost, which is higher for buses than rail. Rail systems are less expensive to operate than bus systems on a per-passenger-mile basis according to the Transportation Energy Data Book of the Department of Energy.

Section 11

Description

1. The HOT lanes were addressed in the Alternatives Analysis Phase (described as the Managed Lane Alternative) and rejected as providing less benefit as compared to the fixed guideway. The summary of that finding is presented in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, and is addressed in General Comments of this letter.

2. The Project is a 20-mile fixed-guideway system that extends from East Kapolei to Ala Moana Center and includes points in-between.

Cost

3. The Final EIS analyzes the fixed guideway project. The HOT lanes were addressed in the Alternatives Analysis (described as the Managed Lane Alternative) and rejected because it provided less benefit compared to the fixed guideway. The summary of that finding is presented in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS. The \$1 billion construction cost figure is not consistent with the results of the Alternatives Analysis. The Alternatives Analysis estimated the cost of the managed lane in Honolulu at \$2.6 billion. This cost was verified by HDOT and others familiar with Hawaii and HOT projects. The HOT facility could qualify for some Federal funding from highway sources, but it is not eligible for the funds available to the fixed guideway project.

4. The capital plan for the Project is presented in Section 6.3 of the Final EIS, including a description of the amount of funding anticipated from various sources. Section 6.6 of the Final EIS describes risks and uncertainties associated with these funding assumptions. While Federal funds are not guaranteed until Congress acts to allocate them, the completion of the environmental process and approval of a Record of Decision indicates that a project may be eligible for Federal funding, if it meets the specific requirements as identified in the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act, a Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU). provides a good indication of the Project's eligibility for New Starts funding. FTA has given no indication that they will not fund the Project at the levels requested.

Traffic

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Underline

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Underline

Comment [MB119]: Include here.

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Underline

5. While managed lanes would have reduced congestion on parallel highways and the H1, system-wide traffic congestion would have been similar to the No Build Alternative as a result of increased traffic on arterials trying to access the facility. Total islandwide VHD would have increased with the Managed Lane Alternative as compared to the No Build Alternative, indicating an increase in system-wide congestion as shown in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS.

Comment [MB120]: Please verify.

6. Conditions on the highway will be worse in 2030 under any circumstances, regardless of which solution is applied. With the fixed guideway system, total islandwide congestion (as measured by VHD) would decrease by 18 percent, compared to the No Build Alternative (Figure 3-14 in the Final EIS). In addition, traffic volumes were studied at various screenlines in the study corridor. The travel demand forecasting model was used to forecast traffic volumes at these screenlines in 2030, both with and without the Project. Analysis revealed that traffic volumes at these screenlines will decrease up to 11 percent with the Project during the a.m. peak hour (Tables 3-9 and 3-10 of the Final EIS). These tables show an improvement in conditions on the H-1 Freeway with the Project compared to No Build conditions.

Comment [MB121]: What will the roadway VHD level be? Instead of just noting the decrease with the Project, include what the roadway will actually be, too.

Energy Savings

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Underline

7. As stated in the Alternatives Analysis Report and Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, energy consumption would have been the highest with the Managed Lane Alternative. The higher energy use is due to the additional vehicle trips that would occur with this Alternative.

Comment [MB122]: Note diesel/gasoline?

8. As stated before, the Final EIS indicates that the Project will reduce energy consumption by about 2,000 MBTUs over the No Build. The result is also noted in Section 4.11 of the Final EIS. This represents about 15,000 gallons of fuel saved per day. Alternative energy sources, such as photo-voltaic cells, can be built into the rail system at stations and facilities. As the development of alternative energy sources evolves on the island, HECO will generate more electric power from renewable sources, which will contribute to a greener use of energy by the Project.

Environment

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Underline

9. The Managed Lane Alternative was fully evaluated in the Alternatives Analysis and demonstrated to be less effective than a Fixed Guideway Alternative. All alternatives, including the No Build Alternative, include trade-offs between benefits and impacts. As stated in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, the Managed Lane Alternative would have generated the greatest amount of air pollution, required the greatest amount of energy for transportation use, and would have resulted in the largest number of transportation noise impacts of all the alternatives evaluated.

10. To paraphrase from Section 4.6.3 of the Final EIS: The transit facility is not expected to be a visual or physical barrier in most neighborhoods; the Project will not substantially change development patterns, although it may change the character of development along the alignment. The Project will provide a reliable and efficient travel mode for accessing the region's current and future jobs, shopping, and social resources, particularly those in Kapolei and

Downtown. This increase in mobility for neighborhood residents will generally improve the quality of life, especially those with limited financial resources and those who may be transit dependent.

The Project is a little over 20 miles long, and noise levels are lower than for a bus at 50 feet away from a sensitive noise receptor (see Section 4.10 of the Final EIS). In most of the corridor, noise levels as a result of the Project are lower than existing ambient levels. There is also recognition of the visual effect of the Project in the Final EIS. The island's unique visual character and scenic beauty was considered in the visual and aesthetic analysis presented in the Final EIS. The Project will be set in an urban context where visual change is expected and differences in scales of structures are typical. The measures included with the Project to minimize negative visual effects and enhance the visual and aesthetic opportunities that it creates can be found in Section 4.8.3 of the Final EIS under the heading Design Principals and Mitigation. Specific environmental, architecture and landscape design criteria are listed.

Ridership and Capacity

11. The TSM Alternative had a larger number of daily transit trips than the No Build Alternative and less than the Fixed Guideway Alternative, as shown in Table 2-2 of the Final EIS.

12. Figure 3-11 of the Final EIS shows that the fixed guideway will substantially increase the transit mode share for home-based work trips during the a.m. two-hour peak period (7 a.m. to 9 a.m.). As shown in Figure 3-11, for many travel markets, the transit share of trips under the Project will double or triple the share occurring under the No Build Alternative. For example, the commute-to-work transit share of the Kapolei to Downtown Honolulu travel market would increase from 23 percent under the No Build Alternative to 60 percent under the Project. In other words, more than half of the people going from Kapolei to Downtown to work in the morning would use transit with the Project, compared to only a quarter without the Project.

Convenience

13. HOT lanes were evaluated during the Alternatives Analysis phase and rejected because they did not reduce congestion as compared to other alternatives considered.

14. With the Project, as stated in Chapter 3 of the Final EIS, the rate of transfers will be higher than under the No Build Alternative due to proposed changes in local bus service to maximize access to the fixed guideway system. However, because of the high frequency of the fixed guideway service (three-minute headways between trains during peak periods), riders transferring from buses to the fixed guideway will experience minimal wait times. Riders transferring from the guideway service to buses will benefit from improved frequencies on existing bus routes serving stations. Also, several new routes with high frequencies will be provided as feeders to the guideway system. Since these routes will primarily operate in residential areas, they will provide greater reliability versus routes operating along congested arterials. The travel demand forecasting model includes a time penalty for transfers. Ridership forecasts increase 44 percent over the No Build Alternative despite a higher rate of transfers. While people typically try to minimize transfers on any trip, the more fundamental criterion for

Comment [MB123]: Provide examples here.

Comment [MB124]: Provide direct ridership and capacity information for both modes. Current answers do not provide adequate answers to comment.

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Underline

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Underline

Comment [MB125]: Doesn't address transfers issue. Please revisit.

Comment [MB126]: Make sure this is clear.

making a trip decision is how long the trip takes. Rail will offer people a shorter overall trip time compared to other options even with the transfers as noted in Section 3.4.2 of the Final EIS.

Land Development

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Underline

15. The Project will include enhanced bus service integrated with the fixed guideway system. Alternatives that relied only on bus transit were evaluated during the Alternatives Analysis and shown to be less effective than the Fixed Guideway Alternative. Chapter 2 of the Final EIS summarizes those findings.

Comment [MB127]: Can you comment on the direct/indirect land use implications of a HOT lanes?

16. Population growth is expected regardless of the Project. However, because of the Project, more development and growth is expected around station locations. From Section 4.19.2 of the Final EIS, the increased mobility and accessibility that the Project may provide would also increase the desirability and value of land near the stations, thereby attracting new real estate investment nearby. Therefore, the Project's primary indirect effect would be higher densities than presently planned or could otherwise be developed near transit stations. These land use effects could take the form of TOD or transit-supportive development (TSD). ~~If development occurs around stations, it is anticipated that City infrastructure would be improved in these areas.~~ In March 2009, the City Council approved and the Mayor of Honolulu signed Bill 10 (2008) (Ordinance 09-4), which defines the City's approach to TOD around fixed guideway stations. Zoning regulations will address parking standards, new density provisions, open spaces, and affordable housing. Financial incentives could include public-private partnerships, real property tax credits, and infrastructure financing. While the Project is being coordinated with City and State agencies to encourage development of enhanced pedestrian and bicycle facilities and other land use changes near the stations, the actual construction of such facilities and zoning changes are beyond the scope of the Project. The special districts also encourage public input into the design of TOD neighborhood plans to reflect unique community identities.

Taxes

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Underline

17. The \$1 billion construction cost figure is not consistent with the results of the Alternatives Analysis. The Alternatives Analysis estimated the cost of the managed lane in Honolulu at \$2.6 billion. This cost was verified by HDOT and others familiar with Hawaii and HOT projects during the Transit Task Force review. The HOT facility could qualify for some Federal funding from highway sources, but it is not eligible for the funds available to the fixed guideway project.

18. Section 6.3 of the Final EIS describes the financial resources anticipated to pay for the capital cost of the Project, including finance charges. Ordinance 07-001 prohibits using real property tax revenues to pay for capital costs.

Comment [MB128]: Restate the funding sources.

Section 12

Comment [MB129]: Bus stations aren't addressed here, please add.

The engineering cost estimate for a two-lane reversible managed lane facility, which was calculated following the same cost estimating process used for the Fixed Guideway Alternatives, was \$2.6 billion in 2006 dollars. The City Council's Transit Advisory Task Force ~~to~~ reviewed the

Comment [MB130]: Same comment as previous 2006 comments.

Alternatives Analysis [and](#) concluded in their report of December 14, 2006, that the assessment of each alternative was "fair and accurate" and that capital cost estimates were compiled using the same methodology and unit cost and that the construction cost estimates were fairly and consistently prepared. The Task Force also concluded that the Honolulu project is not comparable to the [referenced](#) Tampa tollway ~~that you reference~~. As a point of reference, the State of Hawaii's Highway Modernization Plan, dated January 22, 2009, estimates the cost of the Nimitz Viaduct at \$600 million for a less-than 2.5-mile elevated highway.

The zipper lane was eliminated in evaluation of the reversible facility because with the additional lanes, the demand and capacity would be better balanced without the zipper lane. Implementation of the zipper lane results in the loss of two lanes of capacity in the reverse direction. By 2030, the directional transportation demand will be more balanced than it is today. Eliminating the zipper lane ~~when while~~ evaluating the reversible Managed Lane Alternative provided the greatest benefit to modeled freeway users by increasing capacity in both directions. Stations were provided at important transfer points to maximize the benefit to transit users with destinations other than on the elevated lanes.

As described above, access ramps were provided at several locations, including Aloha Stadium and Middle Street.

Section 13

As shown in Table 6-1 of the Final EIS, the estimated cost for the Project is \$4.6 billion in 2009 dollars or and \$5.5 billion in inflated dollars. The other system costs are noted. Because these costs [included in your comment](#) are not adjusted for inflation (they include costs that are more than 20 years old ~~in 20-year-old dollars~~), [a direct comparison cannot be made to the other projects mentioned in your comment.](#)

Section 14

1. A travel forecasting model was used to forecast traffic volumes during the a.m. [\(7 a.m. to 9 a.m.\)](#) and p.m. [\(X to Y\)](#) peak hours in 2030, both with and without the fixed guideway system. Six screenlines (virtual lines across the corridor used to measure total travel at that point) were identified to compare changes in traffic conditions in the corridor at the six locations. As seen in Tables 3-9 and 3-10 of the Final EIS, [traffic volumes in 2030 will be better with the Project compared to the No Build Alternative.](#) For instance, with the fixed guideway system, there is an 11 percent reduction in traffic at the Kalauao screenline in the Koko Head-bound direction during the a.m. peak hour and a 10-percent reduction in the Ewa-bound direction during the p.m. peak hour when compared to conditions without the fixed guideway.

2. [In "Chapter 2—Alternatives Considered" of the Alternative Analysis report, November 2006 and summarized in the Final EIS, two options were considered for the Managed Lane Alternative: a Two-direction Option and a Two-lane Reversible Option. Both Managed Lane Alternatives "would have provided a two-lane elevated toll facility between Waipahu and Downtown Honolulu, with variable pricing strategies for single or low occupant vehicles to maintain free-flow speeds for transit and high-occupancy vehicles \(HOVs\)." The Two-](#)

Comment [MB131]: You could easily adjust the 20-year-old figures to 2009 dollars. I recommend you do it and include it in a table here.

Comment [MB132]: Provide numbers. What is the LOS for the highway with and without the Project? I'm surprised LOS is never mentioned, especially if congestion is so prevalent.

Comment [MB133]: This response doesn't quite address the incoming comment.

direction Option would have served express buses operating in both directions during the entire day. To maintain free-flow speeds in the Two-direction Option, it may be necessary to charge tolls to manage the number of HOVs using the facility. For the Two-lane Reversible Option, three-person HOVs would be allowed to use the facility for free, while single-occupant and two-person HOVs would have to pay a toll. The Two-lane Reversible Option was found to be the most optimal [of the Managed Lanes Alternative options](#).

3. As stated in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, while this alternative would have reduced congestion on parallel highways, system-wide traffic congestion would have been similar to the No Build Alternative as a result of increased traffic on arterials trying to access the facility. Total islandwide VHD would have increased with the Managed Lane Alternative compared to the No Build Alternative, indicating an increase in system-wide congestion (Table 2-2 of the Final EIS).

4-6. As stated previously, energy use would be the highest with the Managed Lane Alternative. HECO is moving toward renewable energy generation. As that happens, the fixed guideway will also benefit from such new sources of energy. In addition, the Department of Energy ~~does~~ publishes statistics for average transit rail energy consumption (2,784 BTUs per passenger mile), cars (3,512 BTUs per passenger mile), and transit buses (4,235 BTUs per passenger mile). Based upon these figures, transit trains are a more energy-efficient mode of transportation than passenger cars or transit buses. As the Department of Energy advises, great care should be taken when comparing modal energy intensity data among modes. Because of the inherent differences among the transportation modes in the nature of services, routes available, and [many other](#) additional factors, it is not possible to obtain truly comparable national energy intensities among modes. These values are averages, and there is [a great deal of](#) variability ~~even~~ within ~~a~~ modes.

7-9. As mentioned in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, transit reliability would not have been improved except for express bus service operation in the managed lanes. While this alternative would have slightly reduced congestion on parallel highways, system-wide traffic congestion would have been similar to the No Build Alternative as a result of increased traffic on arterials trying to access the facility. Total islandwide VHD would have increased with the Managed Lane Alternative as compared to the No Build Alternative, indicating an increase in system-wide congestion (Table 2-2 of the Final EIS).

10. As mentioned in the Executive Summary and Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, the Managed Lane Alternative would have provided [very little less of a](#) transit benefit at a [higher](#) cost [than the Fixed Guideway Alternative](#). The Fixed Guideway Alternative will be more cost effective in the long run. In the "Summary—Funding Options" section, funding sources for the capital investments associated with the fixed guideway include a State GET surcharge, City general obligation bonds, and FTA funds. Only the Fixed Guideway Alternative could be funded with the GET surcharge. As noted in Chapter 6 of the Final EIS, the GET is expected to generate \$3.5 billion through 2022 and the FTA has agreed to consider at least \$1.4 billion for Federal contribution to the Project through the New Starts program for the Fixed Guideway. The Alternatives Analysis indicates that toll revenues from the Managed Lanes Alternative, if high

Comment [MB134]: Address cost and TOD to fully address comment.

Comment [MB135]: This answer provides good information that can be used elsewhere in this letter, but re-read the incoming comments and make sure you're truly responding to the comment. This comment is more funding-oriented, as opposed to "transfer" oriented.

enough, would pay for ongoing operations and maintenance while any remaining toll revenues, supplemented by other revenues, would be used to repay debt incurred to construct the system.

11. As shown in Chapter 2 of the Final EIS, November 2008, the Managed Lane Alternative would have provided little community benefit, as it would not have resulted in substantially improved transit access in the corridor. This alternative also would not have supported planned concentrated future population and employment growth because it would not provide concentrations of transit service that would serve as a nucleus for TOD. ~~As noted in the Alternatives Analysis, the Managed Lane Alternative would have provided very little transit benefit at a high cost compared to the benefits provided by the Project.~~

Comment [MB136]: This comment seems unrelated.

12. The purpose of the Project, as established in Section 1.8 of the Final EIS, is to provide high-capacity rapid transit in the highly congested east-west transportation corridor between Kapolei and UH Manoa. In Section 1.9, goals include: improve corridor mobility, corridor travel reliability, access to planned development, and transportation equity.

13. Chapter 6 of the Final EIS describes the financial resources anticipated to pay for the capital cost of the Project and for ongoing operating and maintenance costs. Capital costs of the Project, including finance charges, are ~~expected-anticipated~~ to be fully paid for by a combination of FTA Section 5309 New Starts and FTA Section 5307 Funds from the Federal government and revenues from the County General Excise Tax Surcharge levied from 2007 through 2022 on Oahu. Section 6.6 of the Final EIS describes risks and uncertainties associated with these funding assumptions. Chapters 3 and 4 of the Final EIS discuss the effects of the Project on the transportation system and natural and built environment.

Comment [MB137]: Context Sensitive Design attributes so the project blends into the environment?

14. Chapter 1 of the Final EIS indicates that 69 percent of the islandwide population and 83 percent of employment will be located within the corridor ~~in (provide year)~~. Many are much closer than that. Ridership forecasts of over 116,000 ~~riders~~ a day indicate service will reach a broad base of the population and carry ~~very~~ high percentages of trips during the peak travel times when it is most needed. For example, over 30 percent of work trips to Downtown Honolulu will use transit with the implementation of the Project. NEPA (40 C.F.R. Part 1506.6) requires a ~~broad outreach to the community~~ public involvement as part of the environmental impact statement process. The public involvement program is designed, as required by NEPA, to engage the public in as many ways as practical. ~~The~~ This program for the Project has been comprehensive in ~~bringing-sharing~~ information ~~to~~with as many people as possible. Other assertions about travel behavior in your comment are ~~based on unsubstantiated or incomplete analysis and are~~ inconsistent with the findings in Chapter 3 of the Final EIS related to transit ridership.

15. ~~The Project provides an alternative to the travel condition noted in your comment.~~ The Project would result in decreased congestion compared to the No Build Alternative, making travel more reliable for emergency vehicles than with the No Build Alternative.

Comment [MB138]: Re-read the response and respond to points made, and provide supporting numbers/data/figures where possible.

16. Your preference for elevated lanes is noted.

Mr. Dennis Callan
Page 35

The FTA and DTS appreciate your interest in the Project. The Final EIS, a copy of which is included in the enclosed DVD, has been issued in conjunction with the distribution of this letter. Issuance of the Record of Decision under NEPA and acceptance of the Final EIS by the Governor of the State of Hawaii are the next anticipated actions and will conclude the environmental review process for this Project.

Very truly yours,

WAYNE Y. YOSHIOKA
Director

Enclosure